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[The hearing commenced at 11.22 a.m.] 
 
 
Assessor:  If we can just prepare ourselves then we can get ahead.  Now, our first group today 

is Group 13, and it covers objections as I have them noted from Donaldson Motors, Mr 
and Mrs McNaughton of whom we have heard, Mr R Orr, Mr McGraw, Mrs Gilchrist, Mr J 
Orr, Robert Orr & Sons, Mr Strickland, Mrs Jack and Mr Jack Jnr, Mr Miller, and AG 
Allison & Trustees of Allison Trust.  Can I welcome Niall Milner from Group 13 who is to 
be the questioner. 

 
 There are quite a number of issues relating to the various topics within this group, and I 

will make it clear at the start of each topic, if I may Mr Lake, exactly which objection this 
relates to.  We will deal first of all with: 

 
 1.  The acquisition of land 
 
 In view of the number of witnesses for the Promoter, I think it might be helpful if we split 

the topic of land acquisition in two.  Turning first of all, therefore, to the acquisition of 
land as it applies to all the objections.  Bar that from the Jacks, the witnesses from the 
Promoter I see in front of me are Ms Gorlov, Keith Sheridan, Alistair Camelford, Elaine 
Hunter and Terry Boyle. 

 
 Before I invite Mr Lake to question the witnesses perhaps one of the witnesses, Mr Lake, 

could provide an indication of the location as usual to which the objection refers, the 
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plans which we might usefully have in front of us, and ask if you will what the current 
status is in relation to this issue. 

 
Mr Lake:  I shall do so, thank you, sir.  Perhaps I may direct these questions to Mr Sheridan in 

the first place.  We will start by looking at the sheets within the maps, plans and sections 
on which the objectors’ property is placed.  Firstly, Objection No. 26, Donaldson Motors; 
on which sheet is their property found? 

 
Mr Sheridan:  Sheet 17. 
 
Q. And Objection No. 27, Mr and Mrs McNaughton, is that the same sheet? 
A. It is, yes. 
 
Q. Objection No. 33, Mr Roy Orr, on which sheets do we find his land? 
A. Sheets 25 and 27. 
 
Q. For Mr McGraw, he is on sheet -? 
A. Sheet 31. 
 
Q. Mrs Gilchrist is on sheets -? 
A. Sheets 30 and 31. 
 
Q. And then Mr J Orr for Robert Orr & Sons, his land is on sheets number -? 
A. Sheets 28, 29 and 30. 
 
Q. On which sheets then do we find Mr Strickland, Objector 38? 
A. Sheet 32. 
 
Q. Leaving aside the Jacks just for the moment we then come to Mr Miller.  On which sheet 

do we find his land? 
A. On Sheet 60. 
 
Q. And finally in this section, Allison and Trustees of Allison Trust? 
A. Sheet 58. 
 
Q. Turning then to the Donaldsons, could you give an indication of the relationship between 

the land owned by Donaldson Motors and what is proposed in the works? 
A. Yes; the objector’s property is Daisy Cottage, Airdrie Road, Forrestfield, located east of 

Woodside Road and south of the proposed railway.  The relevant plot to this objection is 
Plot 395, which is proposed for permanent acquisition for the works to Woodside 
overbridge, Work No. 22B. 

 
Q. That is quite visible from Sheet 17.  I wonder, sir, would it be easiest if I were to go on 

and update the current situation in relation to this objector, to keep the objectors all 
together? 

 
Assessor:  I think that would be helpful, otherwise we are going to have quite a bit of jumping 

up and down, and if we can package it that would be splendid, thanks. 
 
Mr Lake:  If I could then turn to Mr Boyle and ask, is there any update as to where things stand 

between the Promoter and Donaldson Motors? 
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Mr Boyle:  On Donaldson Motors, the Promoter has also sent a draft agreement to the objector 

addressing all the issues outlined in respect of this objector.  Negotiations will continue 
with a view to agreeing a draft, and it is envisaged that the final agreement will be 
reached which will enable the objector to withdraw their objections. 

 
Q. When? 
 
Mr Milner:  The agreement has been received this week and has been passed to my client for 

his comment. 
 
Assessor:  So that will be before the end of these hearings?  
A. When is the end of the hearings? 
 
Q. It is 31 January.   
A. Hopefully. 
 
Q. You have not been here before, but I will just emphasise that the Committee’s strong 

preference is that it should not have to arbitrate, and it would probably be in the interests 
of both parties to secure that agreement if it is at all possible. 

 
Mr Boyle: It is the promoter’s aspirations as well. 
 
Q. Thanks Mr Boyle, if Mr Milner hadn’t heard that before he will know now.   
 
Mr Lake:  If I revert back to Mr Sheridan and back to Sheet 17 to look at the relationship 

between Mr and Mrs McNaughton’s property and the works proposed in the Bill? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  Yes; the objectors’ property is Lochview, Airdrie Road, Forrestfield, which is 

located west of Woodside Road and south of the proposed railway.  They also own a 
field north of the proposed railway.  Plot 380 is proposed for permanent acquisition from 
the objector for Works No. 2F, cycle path.  The objectors’ stable area and garden will 
abut the work from the railway in Work No. 1.  The objectors’ northern field will abut 
Works No. 23, an access road. 

 
Q. Perhaps I can ask Mr Boyle where things stand at the moment, and whether there is any 

update in relation to these objectors? 
 
Mr Boyle:  No further progress has been made since the submission of the Promoter’s written 

evidence.  The Promoter rests on its written evidence. 
 
Q. Then turning to Mr Roy Orr, we have had an indication that this property is on Sheets 25 

and 27.  Could I ask Mr Sheridan just to summarise the relationship between Mr Orr’s 
land and the proposed works in the Bill? 

 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the land of Wester Torrance Farm and 

Westrigg Bing.  The relevant plots to this objection are 540, 543, 549, 550, 551, 552A 
and 552.  Plots 549, 550, 551, 552 and 552A are subject to the acquisition with 
permanent rights for the upgrade of the existing cycle path and thereafter the provision 
of the cycle path.  Plots 540 and 543 are subject to permanent acquisition for Work No. 
1, the railway and Work No. 2K, the cycle path respectively. 
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Q. Perhaps I can turn to Mr Boyle to ask if there has been any update beyond the position 

contained in the written evidence? 
 
Mr Boyle:  In relation to the acquisition of land, no further progress has been made since the 

submission of the Promoter’s written evidence.  The Promoter rests on its written 
evidence. 

 
Q. This is obviously one where there is proposed to be some evidence.  Would you like me 

to take the evidence now or to come back once we have gone through the preliminaries 
for each group?  Whichever is most convenient to you. 

 
Assessor:  Yes, we could take that now if that would be convenient. 
 
Mr Lake:  I should just like to ask a few additional questions by way of clarification of Mr Orr’s 

land.  You said there that it is proposed to acquire an interest in his land for the purposes 
of the cycle path.  You will be aware that Mr Orr has raised the issue that he regards this 
cycle path is capable of being closed at four months’ notice.  Has investigation been 
carried out as to Mr Orr’s title and what rights he has or burdens he is subject to in 
relation to the current cycle path?  Perhaps I could ask Ms Hunter that? 

 
Ms Hunter:  Yes, we have investigated the title. 
 
Q. And can you summarise what the current understanding of the position is between Mr 

Orr and the cycle path? 
A. I understand that whilst a tenancy agreement is in place with Sustrans, this is not 

actually enforceable. 
 
Q. So if I understand you, he is not actually subject to any legal obligation in respect of the 

cycle path at the moment? 
A. That is our understanding, yes. 
 
Q. Notwithstanding that, can we be quite clear, is there a cycle path on his land at the 

present? 
A. Yes, the current route of the cycle path does go through the route that is shown in the 

maps, plans and sections. 
 
Q. Do you have any idea for how long that has been established? 
A. Approximately 10 years I understand. 
 
Q. And what is the nature of the nature of the path?  Physically how does it appear – is it 

surfaced? 
A. Yes, it is the actual cycle path route at that location.  There isn’t an alternative. 
 
Q. You said there is no legal obligation or burden in respect of the cycle path.  If there was 

to be no cycle path at all on this land at this location, what would the significance be for 
the provision of an east/west link on the cycle path? 

A. There would be no cycle path there. 
 
Q. The link would be broken? 
A. It would be broken, yes. 
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Q. Now, in relation to the suggestion that a different route might be taken for the cycle path, 

you have already indicated that this is the current route.  Has there been discussion with 
various stakeholders as to whether the alternative route proposed by Mr Orr would be 
agreeable with them? 

A. Yes, we have discussed this matter with the main stakeholders for the cycle route 
including Sustrans railway paths, CTC, Spokes and West Lothian Council. 

 
Q. And what was their view as to whether or not the path could be relocated north of the 

Bing? 
A. All parties found it was more desirable to keep the path on its present route, given the 

quality of the route and it is one of the most attractive parts of the cycle route. 
 
Q. In that what is to be acquired here is merely a right in the land rather than acquiring title 

to the land, would it be possible for Mr Orr and the local authority if they were to reach 
agreement to vary the route in future? 

A. Yes, there is a precedent for that. If Mr Orr was able to get planning consent from West 
Lothian Council, that could be one of the conditions of the consent. 

 
Q. One of the concerns that is raised in relation to the proposed cycle path is that it would 

interfere with land use.  Can I ask how is such interference addressed in the Bill?  What 
does the Bill do in respect of interference in land?  Perhaps I could ask Ms Gorlov that. 

 
Ms Gorlov:  It is a compensation issue, sir. At the end of the day if there is interference with 

land and there is loss, there is the potential for a compensation claim. 
 
Q. And the issue I think is raised that this cycle path would have the effect of bisecting his 

land.  Does the Bill address that? 
A. The Bill applies the Compensation Code which includes an ability to claim compensation 

for land that is severed, in the event that severance takes place, and I don’t always say 
that it necessarily does. 

 
Q. Those are all the questions I have, thank you. 
 
Assessor:  [Confers]  If we just carry on with that approach, we will just go through them if there 

are any other questions on the listing.  We have the listing in front of us, if you have 
questions? 

 
Mr Lake:  I understand.  After Mr Roy Orr the next one is Mr McGraw, which has already been 

indicated is on Sheet 31.  Could you summarise the relationship between the Bill 
proposals and Mr McGraw’s land? 

 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the lands of Netherhouses Farm, Armadale.  

Land is being permanently acquired from the objector for Work No. 32, a road, Work No. 
1, the railway, and Work No. 2N, the cycle path.  Various portions of land are also being 
acquired from the objector for the purposes of construction compounds and working 
space, most notably a large compound at Plot 600 and an area of working space at Plot 
604. 

 
Q. If I could ask Mr Boyle, have matters moved on at all from the written evidence? 
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Mr Boyle:  The Promoter has issued a draft agreement to the objector addressing all the 
outstanding issues.  Negotiations will continue with this objector with a view to agreeing 
a draft, and it is envisaged that a finalised agreement will be reached which will enable 
the objector to withdraw the remaining objections. 

 
Assessor:  Perhaps when you answer these questions again you are going to tell me when that 

agreement is going to be reached? 
A. Hopefully by the 31st.  
 
Q. Unless you tell me otherwise for other questions I will assume it is by 31 January, to 

save that question being asked again.  Thank you. 
 
Mr Lake:  Turning now to Mrs Gilchrist on Sheets 30 and 31, Mr Sheridan, once again could 

you summarise the relationship between the works and the objector’s land? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the lands of Stonerigg Farm, Armadale.  Plots 

575, 579 and 581 are being acquired for the purposes of a new footpath. Plots 591, 592, 
593 and 594 are being acquired for Work No. 32, a road. 

 
Q. And Mr Boyle, is there anything to add to the written evidence as to where we stand with 

the objector? 
 
Mr Boyle:  The Promoter has drafted an agreement addressing all the outstanding issues in 

respect of this objector.  This agreement will be issued as soon as practicable.  
Negotiations will continue with this objector with a view to agreeing a draft, and it is 
envisaged that a finalised agreement will be reached which will enable the objector to 
withdraw all the elements of their objection. 

 
Q. Moving on to Mr J Orr of Robert Orr & Sons on Sheets 28, 29 and 30.  Mr Sheridan, 

again what is the relationship between the works and the objector’s land? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the lands of Cowdenhead and Standhill 

Farms, Armadale.  The relevant plots to this objection are Plots 557A, 568, 568A, 565A 
and 574.  Plots 557A, 565A, 568 and 568A are proposed for permanent acquisition for 
Work No. 31A.  Plot 574 as proposed for the permanent acquisition for a new footpath 
between the Black Moss Burn and Westrigg Bing. 

 
Q. Mr Boyle, once again can you update us on where things stand over and above the 

written evidence? 
 
Mr Boyle:  The Promoter has drafted an agreement addressing all the outstanding issues in 

relation to this objector.  This will be issued as soon as practicable.  Negotiations will 
continue with this objector with a view to agreeing the draft, and it is envisaged that a  
finalised agreement will be reached which will enable the objector to withdraw all the 
elements of their objection. 

 
Q. So it is essentially the same position as the previous objector, Mrs Gilchrist? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. Turning then to Mr Strickland on Sheet 32, again Mr Sheridan could you summarise the 

relationship between the objector’s property and the works? 
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Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the lands of Springfield Farm, Armadale.  

Plots 626 and 627 are to be acquired for a new footpath.  Plots 641 and 642 are to be 
acquired for the purposes of Work No. 35, an access road. 

 
Q. Once again Mr Boyle, could you update us as to what the current position is? 
 
Mr Boyle:  An agreement has been drafted by the Promoter and it was intended to send this as 

soon as practicable.  This was on the basis that we had reached an accommodation 
over all the outstanding issues.  That was based on representations made at the 
mediation hearings.  We understood then that objection to the acquisition of the land 
was being withdrawn and replaced by an undertaking to provide an access from Plot 
641.  Prior to these hearings, it was understood that this is now not the case as far as 
the objector is concerned, and we will have to take advice on it. 

 
Q. Just to be clear, you thought matters were going to be resolved but it is not so certain at 

the moment?  Is that the case? 
 
Assessor:  Just for my full understanding, are we back to square one, if I can put it that way, 

back to the original objection, so as far as I am concerned I have an objection from 
them?  Is that where they stand? 

A. There is outstanding objection in relation to the acquisition of land.  We have undertaken 
to remove Plot 626 and 627 from the Bill, and that still remains the case.  It is in relation 
to Plot 641. 

 
Q. If I have this correct, in Group 13 the Strickland objection is No. 38 and there were three 

issues.  One was the acquisition of land, second was access and public land, and the 
third was vandalism.  I just was not quite clear whether the outstanding issue was only 
Issue 1 or whether the Issues 2 and 3 were still outstanding? 

 
Ms Gorlov:  Perhaps I might help Mr Boyle here? 
 
Q. Thank you. 
A. There is a draft letter which has to be advised following the mediation session, which I 

am advised has not yet gone out.  The objector was looking for a gated access and we 
said we could give him an undertaking regarding the provision of such an access. We 
have a form of words which we have now discussed but Mr Strickland has yet to see it.  
We are very much hoping that he will accept it. 

 
Mr Boyle:  That is not now the case – 
 
Ms Gorlov:  All I was going to say is we haven’t tried it on him.  That is all I am saying.  Sorry, I 

didn’t mean it like that!  We haven’t actually asked him – and I am sorry if I am muddying 
the waters here – whether he would accept a specific form of words here. 

 
Q. So as far as I am concerned at the moment, let’s assume that this form of words is 

unacceptable to Mr Strickland and I am left with a report to make to the Bill Committee, 
would it be correct to say that the three issues which were identified as being the 
constituents of his objection, that is to say No. 38, still are Issue 1, the acquisition of 
land, Issue 2, the access including suitability of road and public footpath, and Issue 3, 
the issue on vandalism? 
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Mr Milner: Sir, my understanding is that Issues 2 and 3 have provisionally been dealt with by 

the possibility of receiving agreement, and it is Issue 1 that is outstanding. 
 
Assessor:  I understand the position.  These three are still outstanding until such time as that 

agreement has been achieved?  
A. Yes. 
 
Q. And if it is not achieved then all three issues remain for me to report upon? 
 
Ms Gorlov:  That is our understanding. 
Q. And the agreement, Ms Gorlov – and I know you are only one person and I understand 

that – when is the agreement going out? 
A. Time permitting certainly in the next 48 hours.  It should have gone out in the last couple 

of days but it has not for obvious reasons, but it will be going out in the next few hours. 
 
Q. Thank you; and we can expect as far as your side is concerned for an agreement to be 

reached by 31 January – but of course we do not know Mr Strickland’s position? 
A. It is not a complicated letter of undertaking, and either it will be right or it will not but we 

very much hope it will be acceptable. 
 
Q. Thanks, that has taken a long time but it has clarified for me exactly where I stand, and I 

am obliged to you.  Thanks, Mr Lake.   
 
Mr Lake:  The next one in this part of the session is Mr Miller on Sheet 60. If I could ask Mr 

Sheridan to summarise the works and the land? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises a grazing field at Plot 1105 at Gogerbank, 

Edinburgh.  Plot 1105 is to be acquired for the purposes of Work No. 57B, replacement 
of Goger goods overbridge. 

 
Q. And Mr Boyle, has there been any movement on this over and above what is stated in 

the Promoter’s evidence? 
 
Mr Boyle:  The Promoter has issued a draft undertaking to the objector addressing all the 

outstanding issues.  Negotiations will continue with this objector with a view to 
agreement in draft, and it is envisaged that a finalised agreement will be reached which 
will enable the objector to withdraw all arms of the objection. 

 
Q. So there is a large measure of agreement and it is just a matter of having that formalised 

hopefully before the end of the hearing? 
A. Yes, planning for their undertaking. 
 
Q. Turning now to the Trustees of the Allison Trust, Mr Sheridan could you again 

summarise the works and the extent of the land here? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  The objector’s property comprises the lands of Norton Mains Farm, Edinburgh.  

All of the plots detailed on Sheet 58 are relevant to this objection.  The relevant works to 
this objection are Work No. 54B, the replacement of Norton Mains Farm overbridge, and 
Work No. 54A, a temporary road adjacent to Norton Mains Farm overbridge. 
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Q. Once again, is the situation similar to the ones we have discussed before, so with 
discussion an agreement has been drafted and will be issued, and it is hoped that 
agreement can be reached before the end of these hearings? 

A. Yes. 
 
Assessor:  That was very helpful clarification.  Do you have any further questions you would 

like to ask? 
 
Mr Lake:  No, sir. 
 
Assessor:  I am obliged to you. It is time to turn to Mr Milner then.  Do you have any questions 

of these witnesses? 
 
Mr Milner:  Certainly.  On all the other sheets I have seen – sorry, this is about Mr Orr. 
 
Assessor:  Mr Orr?  Yes, if you could be quite clear as to which objector it is. 
 
Mr Milner:  Mr Roy Orr at Westrigg Bing is the only the only objector I plan to speak about here. 
 
Assessor:  Yes, he is the one who is not resting? 
 
Mr Milner:  Yes; on all the other sheets paths for the cycleway run parallel and tight to the 

railway, so obviously a decision process was followed that decided that was the best 
way forward.  Why was that not the case for my client? 

 
Ms Hunter:  The decision was taken to follow the current alignment, which as you know goes 

along Westrigg Bing, as this was one of the most desirable sections of the cycleway 
alignment, and it is recognised as being important to retain this existing section.  That 
was as a result of consultation with all the stakeholders, as I outlined earlier. 

 
Mr Sheridan:  If I could just add to Elaine’s comment here, she mentioned that it was 

developed in consultation with all the stakeholders and one of the key objectives was to 
retain a like-for-like replacement.  Clearly we are not deviating where the path currently 
goes, and that is as much like-for-like as you can get. 

 
Assessor:  Excuse me asking this general question, but does this like-for-like objective run 

throughout the cycle path as a whole? 
A. As far as we can reasonably achieve, yes. 
 
Q. Thank you.  Please carry on. 
 
Mr Milner:  Has any costing been done for the removal of the cycle path that runs along the 

railway and its relocation, and have any costings been done on what it would cost to do 
that for my client’s ground? 

 
Mr Sheridan:  There have been overall costings done for the entire route of the cycle path.  I 

didn’t quite understand the first part of your question? 
 
Q. I was seeking to ascertain what the total bill is going to be compared to the possible bill if 

the footpath was moved on my client’s ground, so see as an indicative percentage. 
A. I am afraid I don’t have that information. 
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Assessor:  Is it less than 1 per cent? 
A. I really wouldn’t like to hazard a guess.   
 
Q. What is the total figure that has been allocated for the cycle path within the overall 

budget? 
A. I believe it is somewhere – and I will be corrected if I am wrong – around £7.3 million, or 

in that order. 
 
Q. I am trying to get an answer to the question, although what I make of it is quite another 

matter.  So is it a very small proportion of the total?  Is it less than 1 per cent? 
A. Yes, I would say it is a very small proportion. 
 
Q. That’s fine, thank you.   
 
Mr Milner:  No further questions, thank you. 
 
Assessor:  Mr Lake, do you want to re-examine the witnesses? 
 
Mr Lake:  No thank you, sir. 
 
[Witnesses changeover] 
 
Assessor:  Hold on, we are not quite finished yet.  This is quite a complicated group.  Ms 

Hunter, could I call you back? It is in connection with Mr McGraw.  What is the likelihood 
of Mr McGraw losing funding as far as you know through the forestry grant scheme?  Do 
you know what we are looking at in the way of trees there? 

A. Is this for the temporary works compound on Mr McGraw’s land? 
 
Q. Yes. 
A. That is what you are talking about?  Okay; I don’t have an indication of the costs, but 

what I can say is that any costs that are incurred will form the basis for a compensation 
claim, which Mr McGraw would be entitled to make. 

 
Q. So as far as he is concerned he will have replacement funding? 
A. Yes, we would cover the compensation. 
 
Q. To the amount of what he might have got from the forest grant scheme? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. Thank you; but you are unable to assist in what the overall number of trees or the 

acreage – hectarage as it is these days? 
A. I can’t answer that, but perhaps one of my colleagues may be able to? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  We can certainly supply you with it. 
 
Q. That would be helpful, I understand that is a matter that would be of interest.  Thank you.  

We can do the exchange now.  This whole objection now is the Mr and Mrs Jack 
objection. 

 
[Witness changeover: Ms Hunter leaves, Mr McAulay joins witnesses] 
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Mr Lake:  Perhaps as before I could first ask Mr Sheridan to identify the sheets within the maps, 

plans and sections on which you find Mr and Mrs Jack’s property? 
 
Mr Sheridan:  It is Sheets 44 and 46. 
 
Q. And what is the relationship between that property and the work proposed? 
A. The objector’s property comprises the lands of Boghall Farm, Bathgate.  The relevant 

plots to this objection are Plots 839 and 840.  Plots 839 and 840 are proposed to be 
acquired permanently for provision of a relocated Bathgate and rail freight depot. 

 
Q. Could I ask Mr Boyle whether there has been any movement or anything to add to what 

is already contained in the written evidence for the Promoter? 
 
Mr Boyle:  The Promoter submitted further written evidence on this matter on 23 January, as 

requested by the Committee.  Some of this can be provided if the Assessor so requires.  
The Promoter rests on his written evidence in respect of this objector.  

 
Assessor:  Thank you.   Mr Lake, do you have any further questions? 
 
Mr Lake:  I have no further questions in relation to that, thank you very much. 
 
Assessor:  [Confers]  We can do the changeover I think.  Thank you, Mr McAulay. 
 
[Witness changeover: Mr McAulay leaves, Ms Hunter rejoins hearing] 
 
Assessor:  The second topic is: 
 
 2.  Access, including suitability of road and public footpath 
 
 This applies to all the objectors, does it not? 
 
Mr Lake:  Sorry sir, just a matter of procedure. I understood that Mr Milner was to give some 

evidence in support of the Topic 1 objection, and you might want submissions on that. I 
am happy to wait until the end. 

 
Assessor:  [Confers]  I am reminded that Parliamentary procedure is to take each one in 

sequence, so I am inviting you to go through each one of your witnesses. 
 
Mr Lake:  I do apologise. 
 
Assessor:  Please don’t apologise, it is a procedure with which neither you nor I have been 

familiar in the past, but it is well-established in Parliamentary procedure.  Thank you very 
much. 

 
Mr Lake:  I think then if we come to the second topic: 
 
 2.  Access including suitability of road and public footpath 
  
 All the objectors are resting. Mr Sheridan, you are spared because it is the same land so 

we have already identified which sheets and relationship, but if I could just ask Mr Boyle 
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a number of questions quickly in relation to these, as far as the issue of access is 
concerned in relation to Donaldson Motors, is the position as you have already outlined 
for acquisition of land? 

 
Mr Boyle:  It is. 
 
Q. As is Mr and Mrs McNaughton’s position you have already outlined. 
A. That is correct. 
 
Q. And I think Mr Roy Orr? 
 
Ms Hunter:  Can I say that the position for Roy Orr has changed?  As of yesterday we received 

title evidence that Mr Orr has an access right through Plot 543, and we will be seeking to 
replicate that right. 

 
Mr Lake:  It was raised in the written evidence that there was some dubiety as to whether he 

had a right of access to Plot 543, but it is now accepted that he does?  
A. That is accepted, yes. 
 
Q. And therefore the undertaking is to provide him with an equivalent right of access? 
A. That is correct, yes. 
 
Q. After Mr Orr we move to Mr McGraw; again Mr Boyle is the position as you have already 

outlined in terms of negotiations pertaining to agreement? 
A. That is correct. 
 
Q. Is Mrs Gilchrist’s position as you have already outlined? 
A. It is, yes. 
 
Q. J Orr for Robert Orr & Sons, is the position as you have already outlined? 
A. That is correct. 
 
Q. For Mr Strickland, I think you have already indicated the position is slightly different, but 

once again is there anything to add in relation to issue of access? 
A. Nothing else to add, no. 
 
Q. And the Allison Trust, is there anything to add in relation to access there?  
A. Nothing to add in relation to access. 
 
Q. Thank you sir, just to summarise that there are no matters to raise in relation to access. 
 
Assessor:  [Confers]  So you have no further questions?  We have had the vibration, so no 

further questions? 
 
Mr Lake:  No questions, sir. 
 
Assessor:  I am just checking procedurally because there has been a small change in your 

past position, and you would have the opportunity if you wish, Mr Milner, just to ask any 
question on this particular matter – although I can’t imagine that there would be. 

 
Mr Milner:  I can’t think of one! 
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Assessor:  Thank you very much.  We do have one or two thoughts.  [Confers]  In fact we will 

leave those questions. I would like to move on to the next topic, which is: 
 
 3.  Noise and vibration 
 
[Witness changeover: Ms McLean, Ms McKell, Mr Wark, Mr Irwin, Ms Gorlov] 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you sir.  This is with respect to the issue of noise and vibration in Group 13,  

and I think the only objectors to raise this issue are Mr and Mrs McNaughton.  Perhaps I 
could ask someone to confirm to me that in relation to the issue of noise and vibration 
there is no change beyond that which has already been stated by Mr Boyle earlier? 

 
Mr Wark:  There is no change, that is correct. 
 
Q. Thank you, Mr Wark.  Thank you sir, that is the only question. 
 
Assessor:  I am obliged.  In a way the McNaughtons have had a good run, I think.  It will then 

be all change again for: 
 
 4.  Viability of business 
 
[Witness changeover: Ms McLean, Mr Boyle, Ms Hunter, Mr Camelford, Ms Gorlov] 
 
Assessor:  Over  to you, Mr Lake. 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you, sir.  This is Issue 4, viability of business for Group 13, and welcome back 

Mr Boyle.  Perhaps I can ask you to confirm that in respect of the first objector who 
raises this issue, Donaldson Motors, there is nothing to add to what you have already 
said about the development since the written evidence? 

A. That is correct, yes. 
 
Q. And is the position the same for the other objector that raises this issue, the Trustees of 

the Allison Trust? 
A. That is correct, yes. 
 
Q. Thank you. 
 
Assessor:  And you are resting on this one, thank you very much.  [Confers]  I have no 

questions. 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you, sir.  For the next issue: 
 
 5.  Animal welfare 
 
 we have all the Panel members already seated. 
 
Assessor:  That is very helpful. 
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Mr Lake:  For Issue No. 5 within Group 13, animal welfare, raised only by Mr and Mrs 
McNaughton, once again if I could ask Mr Boyle to confirm that there is nothing to add to 
what you have already said regarding these objectors? 

 
Mr Boyle:  Nothing at all. 
 
Q. Thank you very much. 
 
Assessor:  And you are resting?  I do have some questions here, and it is in respect of the 

McNaughtons.  I am wondering if it is at all possible to let me know what size of field the 
horses now have for the purposes of grazing? 

 
Mr Camelford:  I can definitely get that to you within the next day. 
 
Q. That is fine, if you could have it in hectares rather than acres?  Has the Promoter sought 

advice, and if so from whom, on whether the size of area (whatever that may happen to 
be in the end) is adequate for animal welfare? 

 
Ms Gorlov:  I don’t think we have made any specific enquiries, sir. 
 
Q. Would you?  [Yes]  Thanks.  On what basis does the Promoter make the statement that: 
 
 “Horses kept adjacent  to railway lines in many parts of the country do so with no 

ill effects”? 
 
Ms McLean:  Simply based on experience and knowledge from Network Rail’s other locations.  

No specific research has been undertaken on that, it is simply based on experience. 
 
Q. Is there any animal welfare organisation or any other body that could be consulted in this 

regard?  It cannot be an unusual objection where vast developments are located close to 
areas used for stabling or grazing. Is there anything other than Network Rail’s past 
experience? 

A. We did take advice from one vet, simply informally, who was not able to give us anything 
concrete on that, but we could look into it a bit more if you wanted us to do that? 

 
Q. I understand from the Clerk that you might want to have a consultation with the 

International League for the Protection of Horses. It is a well-respected body and they 
would be able to substantiate the (respected) perception of Network Rail. 

A. Yes, sir. 
 
Q. Thank you very much.   
 
Mr Lake:  If I could ask one question as a follow-up to that?  Obviously we have no idea what 

the advice would be in relation to the size of the field or the welfare of animals being 
adjacent to trains, but if I ask you to assume for the moment that the advice came that it 
was not appropriate to keep horses in that field and therefore Mr and Mrs McNaughton 
were unable to use their property for that purpose, would they be eligible for 
compensation in terms of the Compensation Code introduced by the Bill? 

 
Ms Gorlov:  They might be. I say ‘might’ because it could be related to the value of the land.  If 

the land lost value as a result of their inability to use it for that purpose, then there would 
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be the potential for a compensation claim.  The McNaughtons do run a business and 
there is the possibility that they would fall into the category that would allow for 
compensation in that direction as well, which is all slightly speculative at this stage of 
course but it is something that could be addressed at the time. 

 
Q. I wonder if I could also ask Ms Hunter, who I think has a point to raise? 
 
Ms Hunter:  Can I just clarify the statement made by Ms Gorlov?  The McNaughtons do not run 

a business from that property. It is actually for domestic use, a hobby actually.  There is 
no business. 

 
Ms Gorlov:  Right, I beg your pardon, sir. 
 
Assessor:  There may be another type of business, is that correct, but it is not an equine 

business? 
 
Ms Hunter:  It is not equine, that’s right. 
 
Ms Gorlov:  I beg your pardon, sir. 
 
Assessor:  Not at all. 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you, sir. 
 
Assessor:  If the field turns out not to be suitable, and I have inspected the property but I have 

not entered the field, although I have had a sight of it, are there any other fields available 
that you know that the objector might be able to use?  I presume they own the field, and 
I am working on a presumption, but would they be able to rent land elsewhere?  I 
understand the position of Ms Gorlov about compensation but I have seen it modified 
and I would like to know the answer to that question. 

 
Ms Hunter:  That is not a route that we have actually investigated.  What we have allowed for in 

the Bill is a servitude right of access over the adjacent field, to ensure that the 
McNaughtons still have a proper access to it. We would also be seeking to minimise 
land take as far as we possibly could to ensure there was as lesser impact on the field.  

 
Q. Thank you, I think that is as far as we can take that one, and I am obliged.  I think the 

next topic is: 
 
 6.  Health and safety 
 
Mr Lake:  Sir, I think we have the same witnesses for that, which is fortunate.  If I can just direct 

my questions to Mr Boyle with a view to confirming the current position on the objectors 
Mr and Mrs McNaughton, there is nothing to add to what you have already said? 

 
Mr Boyle:  Nothing at all. 
 
Q. And Mr J Orr, once again is there anything to add to that? 
A. Nothing to add.  
 
Q. It is only the two of them raising that, sir. 
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Assessor:  That’s fine; and Mr Milner, you are resting?  [Yes]  I will leave questioning, thank 

you very much.  The next issue is Issue 7: 
 
 7.  Development potential 
 
 We need one change. 
 
[Witness changeover: Mr Sheridan returns] 

 
 Welcome back, Mr Sheridan.  So, usual form, please, Mr Lake. 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you, sir.  Development potential is raised by Mr R Orr.  Mr Boyle, is there 

anything to add to the written evidence and what you have already indicated? 
 
Mr Boyle:  No further progress has been made.  This is the submission on the Promoter’s 

written evidence. 
 
Q. So the objector simply relies on their written evidence as to how the question of 

development potential will be addressed? 
A. It rests on its evidence, yes.  Thank you. 
 
Assessor:  And again Mr Milner, you are resting?  [Yes]  Again there are no questions here.   
 
Mr Lake:  I think we already have the witnesses for the next issue, which is Issue No. 8: 
 
 8.  Movement of livestock 
 
 This was raised by two objectors, firstly Mrs Gilchrist.  Once again Mr Boyle, is there 

anything to add to the written evidence for the Promoter and what you have already said 
about the attempts to reach agreement? 

 
Mr Boyle:  Nothing to add.  
 
Q. And then from Mr J Orr for Robert Orr & Sons, once again is there anything to add to the 

written evidence, and is there anything to add to what you have already said about trying 
to achieve agreement? 

A. There is nothing to add to that also. 
 
Assessor:  And again, Mr Milner, you are resting.  I do have a couple of questions here about 

the movement of livestock which have come to my mind.  If the Promoter is not minded 
at the detailed design stage to provide a segregated bridge for Mr Orr, and as I 
understand it that is what he is requesting, what option is open to him as regards the 
movement of his livestock?  How is he going to cope with this? 

 
Mr Camelford:  If the detailed design stage came up with the result that a segregated bridge 

was unable to be provided, Mr Orr would still be able to use the accommodation bridge, 
albeit that there would be a gate to close off pedestrians and cyclist access, at the time 
of moving his cattle across the bridge. 
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Q. So it might be inconvenient but not impossible for him to continue to conduct his 
business as he does at the moment, would that be fair? 

A. Yes; it may be slightly more inconvenient but he still would be able to conduct his 
business operations as he does at present. 

 
Q. Thank you.  A second question if I may: can the Promoter give any indication of the 

likelihood of the segregated bridge being supplied? I recognise that this is the design 
stage but do you have anything you can help me with there? 

A. It would not be prudent for me to comment on that at this stage, because the detailed 
design stage has only just begun. 

 
Q. I suppose this emerges from the fact that under this issue you state that “The Promoter 

has offered to consider the provision of a segregated bridge”, so what I am pressing you 
for is how far that consideration has got to? 

 
Ms Hunter:  We will be actively considering it as part of the detailed design stage, and it has 

been entered into the commitments register which will be given to the detailed design 
team. 

 
Q. That is as far as it is possible to go at this stage? 
A. At the moment, yes. 
 
Q. Thank you very much. 
 
Mr Lake:  This is a question for Mr Camelford.  You have described what would take place with 

the gates to the bridge.  Is that something which takes place on other bridges where 
there is no segregation provided? 

 
Mr Camelford:  Yes. 
 
Q. So this is a situation which has occurred in practise and operates satisfactorily? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. Thank you. 
 
Assessor:   I think we can move on to: 
 
 9.  Loss of amenity, including woodland 
 
Mr Lake:  Sir, the only two witnesses for this are Ms Gorlov and Mr Boyle, but as they are 

already seated, if I could carry on? 
 
Assessor:  Yes, let’s give the others a rest and they can watch. 
 
Mr Lake:  The issue of loss of amenity including woodland is raised by the objector A G Allison, 

Trustees of the Allison Trust.  Mr Boyle, once again is there anything to add to the 
written evidence and what you have already outlined by way of means of trying to 
achieve agreement? 

 
Mr Boyle:  Nothing to add. 
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Q. Thank you. 
 
Assessor:  And you are resting again, Mr Milner.  I don’t have any questions.  
 
Mr Lake:  If we can move to Issue 10 within this group: 
 
 10.  Vandalism 
 
 This is raised only by Mr Strickland, Mr Boyle, I think you have already indicated that 

there has been some move to achieve agreement, but the position here is slightly 
uncertain, is that correct? 

 
Mr Boyle:  Not in relation to the issue of vandalism. 
 
Q. That is what I was hoping to clarify.  I think the vandalism issue arose out of the 

acquisition of two particular plots? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. Was it 626 and 627? 
A. Yes.  The Promoter within the agreement is undertaking not to exercise his powers over 

the land. 
 
Q. So that is something about which there does not appear to be any dispute between the 

parties, so this issue looks as though it is resolved? 
A. Yes, subject to agreement. 
 
Assessor:  Subject to agreement, yes. 
 
Mr Lake:  So provided the agreement is reached whereby the Promoter need not acquire these 

plots, that should take away the issue of vandalism? 
 
Mr Boyle:  It should, yes. 
 
Assessor:  We have a witness changeover obviously, turning to the oral evidence for the 

group, and it is Mr Niall Milner. 
 
[Witness changeover:  Mr Milner joins the Hearing] 
  
 I appreciate, Mr Milner, that you have already answered questions from Mr Lake, but you 

have the opportunity now to offer evidence in your own right if there is anything further 
that you would like to add, other than what you have given in answer to the question put. 

 
Mr Milner:  It is only really regarding Mr Orr and the route of the footpath. I just want to make it 

clear that at the moment there is an element of flexibility about the route of the footpath – 
 
Assessor:  I am sorry, I didn’t quite catch that? 
 
Mr Milner:  Sorry; there is an element of flexibility, and that will be lost if the route is effectively 

set in stone through the Bill. 
 
Q. Could you just explain what you mean by the “element of flexibility”? 
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A. At the moment he has an agreement with Sustrans, and that agreement was agreed 
between two people and signed by two people, so I would still consider it to be binding. It 
allows for either party to vary the terms through serving notice on each other. 

 
Q. I see, thank you.  I understand now; and does that complete your evidence? 
A. It does, yes. 
 
Q. I am obliged.  Mr Lake? 
 
Mr Lake:  Thank you.  Mr Milner, the agreement that you referred to, who were the parties to it? 
A. The previous owner, Mr Bing and Sustrans. 
 
Q. So Mr Orr was not a party to that agreement? 
A. No, he is effectively a successor in ownership. 
 
Q. So whether or not it is binding on him would depend on whether or not it was validly 

constituted as a servitude right or a right of way, or a lease?  
A. My understanding is that it was effectively just an agreement with no consideration. 
 
Q. Right.  So we are quite clear that Mr Orr was not himself a party to that agreement? 
A. No. 
 
Q. As Mr Orr is a landowner he, like all other landowners in this position, would have to 

submit to people exercising their rights under the Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003, 
known as the ‘Right to roam’ across the land? 

A. Absolutely, yes. 
 
Q. So he is already subject to people choosing to follow this route across his land if they 

wish, irrespective of any agreement? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. But under the ‘Right to roam’ legislation, if I can call it that, it is not possible for the 

Council merely to start putting a path on his land without getting permission or specific 
orders? 

A. No. 
 
Q. In terms of the flexibility that exists, it would still be open to Mr Orr to try and liaise with 

the Council in future to try and have any established right of way varied, wouldn’t it? 
A. Theoretically, yes. 
 
Q. So there is still some flexibility built in to the proposals even if they are carried through 

and put into effect? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. And I think to date it is fair to say from your written evidence, that Mr Orr, or you on his 

behalf, have already been in consultation with Sustrans to see if it would be possible to 
vary the route of the path? 

A. Yes. 
 
Q. Has that been seeking to have it varied to the route to the north of the Bing that Mr Orr 

prefers? 
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A. Ideally, yes.  However, I don’t think Sustrans have been particularly forthcoming in terms 
of replying to Mr Orr’s requests. 

 
Q. They have not acceded to that? 
A. No. 
 
Q. Have they explained why? 
A. No.  I think the problem he has is getting communications back from them full stop. 
 
Q. Thank you very much. 
 
Assessor:  I have only one question.  Do you have evidence of a right of access through the 

Buchanan Homes land - that is Plot 543 – and if you do have evidence, what is it?  
A. I personally had a letter from Buchanan Homes confirming the arrangement. 
 
Q. Could we have a copy of that, hopefully within the 24 hours limit? 
A. Yes, certainly. 
 
Mr Lake:  Just for the avoidance of any doubt, it is now accepted that there is a right of access 

through the Buchanan Homes land, which is why there is now an undertaking to provide 
an access.  That may short-circuit matters. 

 
Assessor:  I accept that it is accepted, but we would still like to have a sight of it.  Thank you. 

You are familiar with the procedures; there is now an opportunity for closing 
submissions, Mr Lake, if you wish to say something at this stage. 

 
Closing Submissions 

 
Mr Lake:  Thank you sir.  The Bill in its present form achieves two things: the first, and perhaps 

major one, is the railway but it is not insignificant that it also seeks to procure an east/ 
west unbroken cycle path.  The importance that has been attached to that has been 
apparent I think from the proceedings that have taken place in the preliminary stage of 
this Bill. 

 
 It is the position for the Promoter that there is no established right of way or servitude 

over Mr Orr’s land, and therefore that if something is not done in this Bill to provide for a 
route in this location that east/west path would be broken, and this important objective of 
the Bill would not be realised.  That justifies having a path.  The next issue is what route 
it should take, and there are a number of factors which indicate that it should be the 
route taken in the Bill.   

 
 Perhaps the first of these is that it is reflecting the present situation.  This is a tarmac 

path that has been used for what is estimated to be a decade.  What Mr Orr is proposing 
is that the Bill change or innovate upon the existing position.  It is also extremely 
significant that this is the route which is preferred by the stakeholders who have been 
consulted, as being regarded as one of the most attractive areas.   

 
 It is of course necessary to consider the countervailing arguments that have been raised 

by Mr Orr as to the effect on him, but in my submission there is no significant detriment 
to him.  In the first place, the Bill protects his rights by providing the possibility of making 
claims for compensation, and in the second place he retains a degree of flexibility in 
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future in that he will have the opportunity to seek to liaise with the local authority to 
change the route of any right of way.  It is not set in stone. 

 
 For these reasons I submit that the route in the Bill is the appropriate route, and should 

be maintained.  It is therefore the case that no amendment of the Bill is appropriate, and 
this objection should not be sustained. 

 
Assessor:  Thank you.  You have a closing submission limit of five minutes, Mr Milner. 
 
Mr Milner:  Certainly.  Mr Orr is the owner of Westrigg Bing and has rights that go with 

ownership.  He certainly feels that the route of the footpath as proposed once it becomes 
a servitude right will cause him problems in terms of moving that in the future, and would 
effectively like to see a solution that suits his own future plans and that of providing a 
footpath to allow the continuation of the cycle way.  Thank you. 

 
Assessor:  Thank you very much, Mr Milner, that is very helpful.  Unless there are any other 

matters that I don’t know of, that concludes the oral evidence for this group. I am grateful 
to all the witnesses; it has been quite hectic but we have got through it.  Thank you very 
much indeed. 

 
[Group 13 concluded at 12.22 p.m.] 
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